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Courtroom information

sigte: LK B2 d....p. Judicial Division/District: -k

Q(L{ Courtroom No.: (

QWT Name & Agency of Prosecutor: ‘[“m .........................
chedll.:

d

Name of Judge: ..

Defence Counsel f}

When did the court sit? .. « VY1 ... For how long did you witness court proceedings? VW
g

- R T T TR

v

S R T S s e S e R AT T
2. Cause list sighted? 2~"N b, Case on cause list?qY ~N C Scheduled start time: ¥ AL~
c. Was it easy to identify the case? ¥ N d. Was it easy identify/locate the courtroom?Y  N_—~

2. What type of hearing was it?
* Briefly mention the subject matter of the case and what stage of hearing it is at

3 Were you allowed to get or peruse a copy of the court record? Y N :
Was hail granted?yN When (date), and what were the conditions of bail {use back of page if

necessary}

4 On the back of the page, please provide a very brief comment on the case history, including law UndET\
which the case is tried, previous adjournment and thesmext adjourned date (4-5 Lines)

% s TR L R e i,ﬁ = SR EATEThE R
= Does the court have a website? ¥ b b. Does the website feature a webpage for the

courtroom/judge you are monitoring? Y e

Did you find a web-copy of the cause list with the case listed? Y V

6. |
a. s the website current? Current Quite Current ~ Out of Date Very Obsolete——

b. Regularity of updates Regulag" Quite Regular Irregular Very Irregular_—

c. Accuracy of information Accurate A bit accurate Inaccuraf/. Misleading

d. Did you find information about your case on the court website?

How useful did you find the website? Was the site easy 10 read and navigate?
Does the site have a search function?

If the court lacks a website, are there plans to have one? At what stage of development isit?

10. | Does the court have ane-filing and e-messaging system? How is it being deployed in this case/in anti-
corruption cases generally? (Please keep your response to 3 lines on the back of the page).

T

i

i B i A S il S

a. The court sat y N b. The case you are monitoring proceeded on scheduleyN
¢. Complainant was in court Y~ N d.Prosecutionwas in court Y~ N
e. The defendant was in court Y _~N f. Defence Counsel in Court Y~ N
g. If hearing was delayed, at whose instance was the delay?
h. What reasons were given for the delay?
f. What consequential orders followed?

12. | a. Defendant wasin custedy p oA
b. Subsisting order to produce defendant complied with Y N

i

a



<. What reasons were given for non-comptiance?

13 2. Witnesses were in Court? .‘_(/N’ b. If not, what reasons Were given? |
c. What consequential directive if any, did the court give? (you may make additional brief comments

on back page)

14. | Case Prioritization: Did the matter proceed as set (mention, motion, h‘fi@g,’mling, address, or
judgment)? . ﬂﬁ ﬂ/ge}q

How many hours or days were allocated to the matter? /t AL 0-6

How many interlocutory applications were takeh? ... Forwhat?
if the case was adjourned, at whose instance and for what reasons?

What was the length of adjournment? If it was a long adjournment, what reasons were given?
Overall, how frequent are adjournments in the case? \
What indicated that the court was giving the case expedited hearing?

15. | General Courtroom Conduct and Efficiency poor Acceptable Good Excellent

Courtroom was orderly

The Judge was courteous and respectful

The Judge was in control® of the proceedings
Judge was ready/prepared** for court

The Prosecution was ready/prepared*** for court
The defence was ready/prepared**** for court
Cases were handled in a timely manner

The judge was impartial

individuals were treated equally by

Court staff “i/ 2 3 4

Transparency and Accountability Poor Acceptable Good Excellent
Judge was demonstrably neutral 1 3 4
Parties were given equal oppartunities

to present their cases 1
Judge made effort to understand

the concerns of the parties 1
prosecution held accountable®**** for actions

o
2
o
that delayed proceedings : 1 3/ 3 4
= o
o

SRR T T R L
w
bbbbbbhb

Defence held accountable for actions

that delayed proceedings s it 3 4

The interest of the public was adequately =
represented : : 1 3 4

Communicating Courtroom Proceedings poor Acceptabie Good Excellent

Court announced every stage of proceedings y 2 3 4

Court explained every stage of proceedings /5= 2 3 4
Defendant understood pracedures and rulings
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Documenting the Ohservet’s experience




| gained better understanding of the court’s role in anti-corruption cases:

.

Very Much Quite 50 NW _ Notat all
Court process was fair: Very fair Quite Fair Not sure Unfair

Courts reaction t0 observer’'s presence. Receptive Cooperative Hostile  indifferent

Did your confidence in the court ability to dispense justice increase hecause you witnessed
proceedings? Very Much Quite So Not sute~ Not at all

-,

Notes on certain terms

* A judge isin control when he maintains general courtroom decorum, holds counsel to the highest
levels of compliance with the rules, grants adjournments only for valid reasons and not more times
than is permitted by the rules.

L4

x=ypoy can tell that a judge is unprepared if for instance s/he COMES to court without having read the
case file and relevant law, or easily grants adjournments for flimsy reasons.

#*% A prosecutor petrays his or her unpreparedness when he/fshe betrays @ firm grasp of the
case/facts and applicable law, @ charge or information sheet is found to be defective or the
+prosecution fails to ensure that processes have been properly filed, court directives have heen
complied with and that prosecution witnesses are in court if the case was set down for the

. prosecution’s case.

w#%% |ngications that the defence attorney is unprepared could include gimmicks that are intended
to prevent the court from proceeding with the hearing as scheduled, unscheduled interiocutory
applications, faijure to produce defence witnesses, etc.

sxx% A judge holds legal counsels accountable when s/he does not accommodate flimsy EXCUSES
for adjournm_ents, é_nsures that timelines are kept and a tight lead is kept on adjournments by
upholding the proVisions of ACIA and practice directions relating 10 court room delays and
adjournments. His or her ability. to enforce the rules show that s/he retains control of the
proceedings and would were necessary, remonstrate parties and counsel for holding up
proceedings. The judge may also issue consequential orders, order costs where justified, and ensure
that his/her orders are complied with.

a




Court Observation Form
e, -

ate ime of Monitorin xe\rcise-: L& el (0 )Zg/ \
A'! Djmmgté/ﬁig Case No. 6@/2_5{/%

Ease THHlE: ot e il sonraneres e e

Courtroom information

| s Ay (&
State: &1 OV AL Judicial DlVlSlQn/DlStrlCt. ................................. Cm};t)room e e I
Name ofJudge:f%... C

cerepe NAME & AgENCY Of PrOSECUTON: Tokeccumissimsnnsspasssnsensesemsnions
Defence Counse! ..cooeee

) Q-}V\
when did the court sit? 7153 For how long did you witness court proceedings? ... it

e

et e

A a. Cause list sighted? Y N b.Caseoncause hst?J/N c. Scheduled start time:
c. Was it easy to identify the case? Y —N d. Was it easy identify/locate the courtroom?&— N
2 What type of hearing was it?
* Briefly mention the subject matter of the case and what stage of hearing it is at
3 Were you allowed to get or peruse @ copy of the court record? Y N __~

Was bail granted? Y -~ When (date), and what were the conditions of bail {use back of page if
necessary) ;
i
l 4 On the back of the page, please provide a very brief comment on the case history, including law undeﬂ
| which ied, previous adjournment and themext adjourned date (6-5 Lines) ‘
e i T = T =
5. o Does the court have a website? Y [N_~B. Does the website feature a webpage for the
courtroom/judge you are monitoring? ¥ N __—
6. Did you find a web-copy of the cause list with the case listed? ¥  Ne—"
Tk a. Is the website current? Current Quite Current  Out of Date Very Obsolete
b. Regularity of updates Regular -~ Quite Regular  Irregular . Very Irregular
c. Accuracy of information  Accurate A bit accurat-e/lnaccurate Misleading
d. Did you find information ahout your case on the court website?

How useful did you find the website? Was the site gasy to read and navigate?
Does the site have 2 search function?

If the court lacks a website, are there plans to have one? At what stage of development is it?

Does the court have an e-filing and e-messaging syste
carruption cases generally? (Please keep

m? How is it being deployed in this case/in anti-
e to 3 lines on the back of the page).

T

your respons

s s 53]

11. | a. The court sat & N b. The case you are monitering proceeded on schedule Y/ N
¢. Complainant was in court _;(/ N d.Prosecution was in court Y -~ N :
o. The defendant was in court ¥ ¢ pefence Counsel in Court Y/ N
g. If hearing was delayed, at whose instance was the delay?
h. What reasons were given for the delay? i
f. What conseguential orders followed?

12. | a. Defendant was in custody Ve Hag
b. Subsisting order to produce defendant complied with - Y N




2. Witnesses were in court? YN b. if not, what reasons Were given?
c. What consequential directive if any, did the court give? (you may make addit
on back page)

Case Prioritization: Did the matter proceed as set
judgment)?

How many hours or days were allocated to the matter?

How many interlocutory applications were taken? ... BEPIEED s e g it o
If the case was adjourned, at whase instance and for what reasons?

What was the iength of adjournment? if it was a long adjournment, what reasons were given?
Overall, how frequent are adjournments in the case?

What indicated that the court was giving the case expedited hearing?
15. | General Courtroom Conduct and Efficiency Poor Acceptable Good Excellent

ional brief comments

(mention, mOWring, ruling, address, of

Courtroom was orderly 1 2 3 4
The Judge was courteous and respectful it 2 hl 4
The Judge was In control* of the proceedings ] G 3 Z
Judge was ready/prepared™™ for court 1 2 3 4
The Prosecution was ready/prepared*** for court 1 2 3 4
The defence was readv/prepared**** forcourt 1 2 3~ 4
Cases were handled in & timely manner 1 2 3 4
The judge was impartial { l 2 3 4
individuals were treated equally by

Court staff ‘1/ 2 3 4
Transparency and Accountability : poor Acceptable Good Excellent
ludge was demonstrably neutral 1 2 3 4
parties were given equal opportunities

to present their cases 1 2 ‘5/ 4
judge made effort to understand

the concerns of the parties : 1 y 3 4

prosecution held accountable®**** for actions

that delayed proceedings it A 3 4

Defence held accountable for actions i

that delayed proceedings i y 3 4

The interest of the public was adequately :

represented ¢ 1 y 3 4

Good Excellent
a

Communicating Courtroom Proceedings poor Acceptable
Court announced every stage of proceedings el e 3
Court explained every stage of proceedings 2
Defendant understood procedures and rulings 1 2

y provide b;ief comments of the REAEIAES . filesides oluniifrssss s e
PLSE explent WA JUX

Documenting the Observer’s experience




| gained better understanding of the court’s role in anti-corruption cases:

Very Much Quite So Not gure - . Notatall
Court process was fair: Veryifair Quite Fair Not sure Unfair
Couris reaction to observer's presence. Receptive Cooperatwtile indifferent

Did your confidence in the court ability to dispense justice increase because you witnessed
proceedings? Very Much Quite 5o Not sure Not at all

What did you find most interesting about your eXPErienCe? L mmendinrn
1248} 44 2 ALty '
T,

............. 'ﬁ’..ﬁ??%?éjﬁ?%ﬁ...'.Z'.'.Zﬁ_.f'.'.ﬁ'.llﬁﬁfﬁlf.ﬂf.ﬁﬁ’.ff.ﬁﬁ

* A judge is in control when he maintains general courtroom decorum, holds counsel to the highest
levels of compliance with the rules, grants adjournments only for valid reasons and not more times
than is permitted by the rules.

Notes on certain terms

>

**you can tell that a judge is unprepared if for instance s/he comes to court without having read the
case file and relevant law, or easily grants adjournments for flimsy reasons.

*#* A prosecutor betrays his or her unpreparedness when he/she betrays a firm grasp of the
case/facts and applicable law, 2 charge or information sheet is found to be defective or the
prosecution fails to ensure that processes have been properly filed, court directives have been
complied with and that prosecution witnesses are in court if the. case was set down for the
prosecution’s case. |

—_—

*+%* |ndications that the defence attorney is unprepared could include gimmicks that are intended
to prevent the court from proceeding with the hearing as scheduled, unscheduled interlocutory
applications, failure to produce defence witnesses, etc.

*xxxx A judge holds legal counsels accountable when s/he does not accommodate flimsy excuses
for adjournments, ensures that timelines are kept and a tight lead is kept on adjournments by
upholding the provisions of ACJA and practice directions relating to court room delays and
adjournments. His or her ability. to enforce the rules show that s/he retains control of the
proceedings and would were necessary, remonstrate parties and counsel for holding up
proceedings. The judge may also issue consequential orders, order costs where justified, and ensure
that his/her orders are complied with.
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Court Observation Form
MO‘GI C’MW e l

Court Ohserver: . ,\Q _ Date & Time of Monitoring Exercise:

FHos

Case TRl vearede Mot o s sanonmenrasseramsnenfee

State: mug/l Judlaai Dleson/Distrlct /ﬂ_a%@ﬂ(ﬁ Courtroom No.: {% ...............

Name of Judge: 1 MQ‘ . Name & Agency of Prosecutor:=

Defence Counsel ..

Zo fL Mk

When did the court sit? . (T CUV\ . For how long did you witness court proceedings? ..

a. Ca-use list sighted? ' b. Case on cause l;st? Y c. Scheduled start time: Y—N
. Was It easy to identify the case? Y_~N d Was it easy tdentlfv/locate the courtroom?_/ N
What type of hearing was it? [0 48 :
* Briefly mention the subject matter of the case and{what stage of hearmg itisat
Were you allowed to get or peruse a copy of the court record? Y M7

Was bail granted? cY/N when (date), and what were the conditions of bail {use back of page if
necessary) ' J

4 On the back of the page, please provide a very brief comment on the case history, including law under ‘
‘which the case is tned previous adjournment and thesext adjourned date (4-5 Lines)
b T coun ang T (tickiorderli
5t a. Does the court havea websﬂze? Y N Does the wehsite feature a webpage for the
courtroom/judge you are monitoring? Y N_—~"

5. Did you find a web-copy of the cause list with the case listed? Y N
7. | a.ls the website cufrent?  Current Quite Current  Out of Date Very Obsolete
b. Regularity of updates Regular Quite Regular  IrregulaL— Very Irregular

c. Accuracy of information  Accurate A bit accurate lnaccuraya/ Misleading

d. Did you fmd mformatlon about your case on the court website?

8. How useful did you find the website? Was the site easy to read and navigate?
Does the site have a search function?

S |7 the court lacks a website, are there plans to have one? At what stage of development is it?

Does the court have an e-filing and e- messagmg system? How s it being deployed in this case/in anfi-
corruption cases generally? (Please keep your response to 3 lines on the back of the page).

a. The court sat ,j’/ N b. The case you are monitoring proceeded on schedule ¥ N
c. Complainant was in court X~ N d.Prosecution was in court SN
e. The defendant was in court A £, pefence Counsel in Court - YN
g. If hearing was delayed, at whose instance was the delay?
h. What reasans were given for the delay?

f.What consequential orders followed?

&

12. l a. Defendant was in custody Y N
\ b. Subsisting order to produce defendant complied with Y N




<. What reasons Were given for.non-compliance?
\
2. Witnesses Were in Court? YN
{ ¢. What consequenﬂa\ directive if any,
on back page)
Case Prioritization: Did the maiter
judgment)?

13

What was the jength of adjournment?

What indicated that the court was
General Courtroom Conduct and Efficiency
Courtroom was orderly

The judge was courtecus and respectful

The Judge was in control™ of the proceedings
Judge was ready/prepared** for court

The Prosecution
The defence was ready/prepared**** for court
Ccases were handled in a timely manner

The judge was impartial

individuals were sreated equally by

Court staff '

Transparency and Accountability

Judge was demaonstrably neutral

Parties were given equal opportun‘sties

to0 present thelr cases

Judge made effort to understand

the concerns of the parties

Prosecution held accountéble***** for actions
that delayed proceedings

pefence held accountable for actions
that detayed proceedings

The interest of the pubiic was adequately
represented

communicating Courtroom Proceedings

Court announced every stage of proceedings
Court explained every stage of proceedings
Defendant understood procedures and rulings

Documenting the Observer’s experience

did the court give?

was ready/prepared** * for court

b, If not, what reasons were given?

{you may make additional brief comments

proceed as set {mention, motion, hWﬂﬁng, address, or

How many hours of days were allocated to the matter?
How many interiocutory applications were taken? ...
If the case was adjourned, at whose instance and for what reasons?

|f it was a long adjournment, what reasons were given?
Overail, how frequent are adjournments in the case?

giving the case expedited hearing? |

For what?

poor Acceptable Good Excellent 1
1 2 3.~ 4 \
1 2 Bds A l
: 2 ar 4 1
1 2 3 4
1 2l ?/ 4
1 2 _’:3/ 4
il 2 .3/ 4 l
1 3 3~ 4 %
1 2/ 3 4 |

Poor Acceptable Good Excellent
T, 2 8k 1

=l 1l
3 3 3.7 A
! 7 5.
il .2/ 3 4
1 & & 4
1 2 z 4

poor Acceptable Good Excellent
1 4
1

it




ligained better understanding of the court’s role in anti-corruption cases:

Very My/' Quite So Not sure _ Notatall
Court process was fair: Very fair Quite Fair Not sure Unfair
/

Courts reaction to observer's presence: Receptive  Cooperative Hostile indifferent
p . P p el

Did your confidence in the court ability to dispense justice increase because you witnessed
proceedings? Very Much Qu‘i_teﬁ/ Not sure Not at all

What did you find most interesti

Notes on certain terms

* A judge is in control when he maintains general courtroom decorum, holds counsel to the highest
levels of compliance with the rules, grants adjournments only for valid reasons and not more times
than is permitted by the rules.

r

*%you can tell that a judge is unprepared if for instance s/he comes to court without having read the
case file and relevant law, or easily grants adjournments for flimsy reasons.

*#* p prosecutor betrays his or her unpreparedness when he/she betrays 2 firm grasp of the
case/facts and applicable law, 2 charge or information sheet is found to be defective or the
prosecution fails to ensure that processes have been properly filed, court directives have been
complied with and that prosecution witnesses are in court if the case was set down for the
prosecution’s case. ' ;

=#%% |ndications that the defence attorney is unprepared could include gimmicks that are intended
to prevent the court from proceeding with the hearing as scheduled, unscheduled interlocutory
applications, failure to produce defence witnesses, etc.

x+x%% A judge holds legal counsels accountable when s/he does not accommodate flimsy excuses
for adjournments, ensures that timelines are kept and a tight lead is kept on adjournments by
upholding the provisions of ACIA and practice directions relating to court room delays and
adjournments. His or her ability. to enforce the rules show that s/he retains control of the
proceedings and would were necessary, remonstrate parties and counsel for holding up
proceedings. The judge may also issue consequential orders, order costs where justified, and ensure
that his/her orders are complied with.

L



Court Obs rvation For
W (NS (% W

Court Ohservers g Date ime of Monitoring Exercise:

Oﬁ
Case Title: ol ma e 'Q

Couﬂri&nformation : . W
State: Judicial Dwisson/Dlstnct .. Courtroom No.:

. 4 ‘BFee )
Name of Judge: %Lﬁ\m Name & Agency of Prosecutor: . (7% ‘ A [/f'\ C £

When did the court sit? . f? .é.(For how long did you witness court proceedings? //L’ﬂ'” :

R
b a. Cause list snghtecP X b.Caseon causelist? ¢. Scheduled start time: XN
¢, Was it easy to identify the case? L~ d.Was it eagy ndenttfy/iocat the courtroom? §_M
2. | What type of hearing was it? cO / Lor ” A oo \
* Briefly mention the subject matter of the case and what stage of hearmg itis at L

3 Were you allowed to get or peruse a copy of the court record? Y _~"N

Was hail granted? yN When (date), and what were the conditions of bail {use back of page if
necessary) ;

4 On the back of the page, please provide a very brief comment on the case history, including law under
which the case is tried, previous adjou nment and the-next adjourned date (4-5 Lines)

i}

5, a. Does the court have a website? X~"N b. Does the webmté feature a webpage for the
courtroom/judge you are monitoring? ¥ N_~7

6. ‘ Did you find a web-copy of the cause list with the case listed? Y N_~7

7. [ a. s the website cufrent?  Current Quite Current  Outof Date__~ Very Obsolete
b. Regularity of updates Reguiar _Quite Regular  lrregular . Very lrregular
c. Accuracy of information Accurate A bit accurayinaccurate Misleading

d. Did you find information about your case on the court website?
How useful did you find the website? Wagthe site easy 10 read and nawgate?
Does the site have a search function? /7, Wyﬂuf& '& M

If the court lacks a website, are there plans to have one? At what stage of development isit?

10. | Does the court have an e-filing and e-messaging system? How is it being deployed in this case/in anti-
corruption cases generally? (Please keep your response to 3 lines on the back of the page)

a. The court sat Y N b The case you are monitoring proceeded onschedule ¥ N
¢. Complainant was in court NN Prosecution was in court, Y_— N
e. The defendant was in court yﬂ £, Defence Counsel in Court Y __— N
g. If hearing was delayed, at whose instance was the delay?
h. What reasons were given for the delay?
f. What consequential orders followed?
172. | a. Defendant wasin custody Y N

b. Subsisting order to produce defendant complied with ¥ N

a




C. What reasons were given for non-compliance?

3. Witnesses were in Benrt: Y E

b. If not, what reasons were given?

on back page)

Case Prioritization: Did the matter pr
judgment)?

tiow many hours or days were allocated to the ‘matter?

oceed as set {mention, motion, heari

i the case was adjourned, at whose instance and for what reasons?

Overall, how frequent are adjournments in the case?
What indicated that the court was giving the case expedited hearing?
15. | General Courtroom Conduct and Efficiency poor Acceptable

Good

. What conseguential directive if any, did the court give? {you may make additional brief comments

" ruling, address, of

How many interlocutory applications were . o U R e

What was the length of adjournment? If It was a long adjournment, what reasons were given?

Excellent

Courtroom was orderly ¥ 2 da” - A
The Judge was courteous and respectful 1 2 V 4
The judge was In control* of the proceedings i 2 _E/ 4
Judge was ready/prepared™* for court 1 2 5_’/ 4
The Prosecution was ready/prepared™** for court 1 A 3 4
The defence was ready/prepared**** for court it 2 S 4 \
Cases were handled in a timely manner it e = 4
The judge was impartial 1 2 3. 4 e
Individuals were treated equally by

Court staff ' 1 2 3_// 4
Transparency and Accountability Poor Acceptable  Good Excellent
judge was demonstrably neutral 1 2 e 4
pactias wera given equal opportunities

to present their cases 1 2 ' 9/ &
Judge made effort to understand

the concerns of the parties s 1 2 et

X prosecution held accountable***** for actions

that delayed proceedings ; 1 .}/ 2 4
Defence held accountable for actions : :

that delayed proceedings- : 1 3/ 3 4
The interest of the public was adequately

represented i 1 2 L-3// 4
Communicating Courtroom Proceedings poor Acceptable  Good Excellent
Ceourt announced every stage of proceedings i 2 _3/ 4
Court explained every stage of proceedings Y B 3 4
Defendant understood procedures and rulings i ) /3 4

You may if necessar\,fpro(:z;e brieffznzents of the hearing: ...,
i /0‘14/ 2 ""i

Documenting the Observer’s experience




.

| gained better understanding of the court’s role in anti-corruption cases:

Very Muc&_?_/ Quite So Not sure ~ Notatall
Court process was fair: Very fair Qw“ry“ Not sure Unfair

Courts reaction to observer's presence: Reéggtivé Cooperative Hostile indifferent

Did your confidence in the court ability to dispense justice increase because you witnessed
proceedings?  Very Much ~ QuiteSo_  Notsure Mot at all
/’

What did you find most interesting about your experience? ..

> QR |
f&c

Notes on certain terms

* A judge is in control when hé maintains general courtroom decorum, holds counsel to the highest
levels of compliance with the rules, grants adjournments only for valid reasons and not more times
than is permitted by the rules.

L4

**you can tell that a judge is unprepared if for instance s/he comes to court without having read the
case file and relevant law, or easily grants adjournments for flimsy reasons.

#%% A prosecutor betrays his of her unpreparedness when he/she betrays a firm grasp of the
case/facts and applicable law, a charge or information sheet is found to be defective or the
prosecution fails to ensure that processes have been properly filed, court directives have been
complied with and that prosecution witnesses are in court if the case was set down for the
prosecution’s case. :

xxx* |ndications that the defence attorney is unprepared could include gimmicks that are intended
to prevent the court from proceeding with the hearing as scheduled, unscheduled interlocutory
applications, failure to produce defence witnesses, etc.

#xxx% A jydge holds legal counsels accountable when s/he does not accommaodate flimsy excuses
for adjournn’ients, e‘ns'urgs that timelines are kept and a tight lead is kept on adjournments by
upholding the provisions of ACIA and practice directions relating to court room delays and
adjournments. His or her ability to enforce the rules show that s/he retains control of the
proceedings and would were necessary, remonstrate parties and counsel for holding up
proceedings. The judge may also issue consequential orders, order costs where justified, and ensure
that his/her orders are com plied with.

L



. What reasons were given for non-compliance?

15 a. Witnesses Were in Court? ‘)’/N b. If not, what reasons were given?
¢. What conseguentiat directive if any, did the court give? (you may make additional brief comments
on back page)
Case Prioritization: Did the matter proceed as set {mention, motion, hearizg, ruling, address, or
judgment)? ;
How many hours or days were allocated to the matter?
How many interlocutory applications were taken? ... For e R e R
if the case was adjourned, at whose instance and for what reasons?
What was the length of adjournment?  Ifitwasa iong adjournment, what reasons were given?
Overall, how frequent are adjournments in the case?
What indicated that the court was giving the case expedited hearing?

15. | General Courtroom Conduct and Efficiency poor Acceptable Good Excellent
Courtroom was orderly 1 i M 4
The Judge was courteous and respectful 1 2 _3/ 4
The Judge was in control® of the proceedings il 2 34 = 4
Judge was ready/prepared** for court 1 2 Stk
The Prosecution was-ready,’prepared*** for court 1 P 3 4
The defence was ready/prepared**** for court 1 _V 3 4
Cases were handled in a timely manner 1 2 ;/ 4
The judge was impartial - 1 2 f:%/ 4
Individuals were treated equally by
Court staff : i 2 3 4
Transparency and Accountability Poog Acceptable  Good Excéllent
Judge was demonstrably neutral it 2 M 4
parties were given equal opportunities -
to present their cases i ik V 4
Judge made effort to understand ‘
the concerns of the parties 1 2 LIS

.| Prosecution held accountable®**** for actions
that delayed proceedings ‘ i }/ 2 4
Defence held accountable for actions :
that delayed proceedings i 1 y 3 4 ,
The interest of the pubiic was adequately 5
representad t ik 2 2 4
Communicating Courtroom Proceedings poor Acceptable  Good Excellent
Court announced every stage of proceedings 1 "2_/ 3 4
Court explained every stage of proceedings it 2
Defendant understood procedures and rulings

You may iprrovide brjef commentsgf the hearing: ..

Documenting the Observer’s experience




| gained bettet understanding of the court’s role in anti-corruption cases:

Very Mug,h/- Quite So Not sure ~ Not atall
Court process was fair: Very fair Quiie/Fa;n/ Not sure Unfair
Courts reaction to observer’s presence: Receptive Cooperative— Hostile indifferent

Did your confidence in the court ability to dispense justice increase because you witnessed

proceedings? Very Much . Quites/ Not sure Not at all
Ai’/cu"ghq

nAste

What did you find rpost interesting aboUL YOUT EXPETIENCEY .fiwwsssgmmseyferioeer o gglions

Notes on certain terms

* A judge is in control when he maintains general courtroom decorum, holds counsel to the highest
levels of compliance with the rules, grants adjournments only for valid reasons and not more times
than is permitted by the rules.

L

*xyoy can tell that a judge is unprepared if for instance s/he comes to court without having read the
case file and relevant law, or easily grants adjournments for flimsy reasons.

#x% A prosecutor betrays his or her unpreparedness when he/she betrays a firm grasp of the
case/facts and applicable law, a charge or information sheet is found to be defective or the
p'rosecution fails to ensure that processes have been properly filed, court directives have been
complied with and that prosecufion witnesses are in court if the case was set down for the
prosecution’s case. : '

#%%% [ndications that the defence attorney is unprepared could include gimmicks that are intended
to prevent the court from proceeding with the hearing as scheduled, unscheduled interlocutory
applications, faifure to produce defence witnesses, etc.

*xx%% A judee holds legal counsels accountable when s/he does not accommodate flimsy excuses
for adjournments, é_nsures that timelines are kept and a tight lead is kept on adjournments by
upholding the provisions of ACIA and practice directions relating to court room delays and
adjournments. ‘His or her ability. to enforce the rules show that s/he retains control of the
proceedings and would were necessary, remonstrate parties and counsel for holding up
proceedings. The judge may also issue consequential orders, order costs where justified, and ensure
that his/her orders are complied with.
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Court Observation Form

Court Observer: . C U.t HMUM_Q Date & Time of Monitoring Exercise:

Case TItIE: vveieieerreedersmns s me e e see

Courtroom Information i

State: . Q/';L /_,_ ..... Judicial D|V|510n/District:M{%}@:ﬂ......,. Courtroom No.: ‘3
Name of Judge: .. 74 64};0 ... Name & Agency of Prosecutor: ... =2.... C' C__ .......................
Defence Counsel ...

When did the court sit? (z . ctﬂ/.‘ . For how long did you witness court proceedings? «e.

1L a. Cause list sighted? M b. Case on cause list? N c Scheduled start time: YN
c. Was it easy to identify the case? j_(/N d. Was it easy identify/locate the courtroomw

2. | What type of hearing was it? & (o {'LM (ot

* Briefly mention the subject matter of the case and what stage of hearing it is at

3 Were you allowed to get or peruse a copy of the courtrecord? Y N __—

Was bail granted? Y When {date), and what were the conditions of bail {use back of page if
necessary) !
4 On the back of the page, please provide a very brief comment on the case history, including law under

wh&ch the case is tried, previous adjou rnment and the next adjourned date (4-5 L )

! N i e O T R R R R e S S e A
a. Does the court have a website? /N b. Does the website feature a webpage for the

courtroom/judge you are monitoring? Y N/
6. Did you find a web-copy of the cause list with the case listed? Y N/

T, a. Is the website current?  Current Quite Current  Out of Date~ Very Obsolete
b. Regularity of updates Regular Quite Regular Irregular _~~  Very Irregular
c. Accuracy of information  Accurate A bit accurat Inaccurate Misleading

d. Did you find information about your case on the court website? f\{’_@

8. How useful did you find the website? Was the site easy to read and navigate?

Does the site have a search function?

G \f the court lacks a website, are there plans to nave one? At what stage of development is it?

10. | Does the court have an e-filing and e-messaging system? How is it being deployed in this case/in anti-
corruption cases generally? (Please keep your response to 3 iincs on the back of the page).

g, The court sat Y~ N b. The case you are monitering proceeded on schedule Y _— N
c. Complainant was in court )’/N d. Prosecution was in court N
e, The defendant was In court Y __-N f. Defence Counsel in Court Y N
g. If hearing was delayed, at whose instance was the delay? —
h. What reasons were given for the delay?
f. What consequentia! orders followed?
12. | a. Defendant was in custody Y N

h. Subsisting order to produce defendant complied with Y N ‘J

——r——

e



c. What reasons were given for non-compliance?

2. Witnesses were in Court? Y r‘:l/ b. If not, what reasons Were given?
¢. What consequential directive if any, ;did the court give? (you may make additional brief comments
on back page) :

Case Prioritization: Did the matter proceed as set

(mention, motion, heaWHng, address, or
judgment)?

How many hours or days Were allocated to the matter? /‘ﬁ% '4’;7 2 "L-’G?’V‘

How many interlocutory applications were taken? .- FOT WREED cooiresssormensarssisessmsscisesmmansammasssenssfigess s
if the case was adjourned, at whose instance and for what reasons?

What was the length of adjoumment?ﬁ If it was a long adjournment, what reasons were given?
Overall, how frequent are adjournments in the case?

What indicated that the court was giving the case expedited hearing?

15. | General Courtroom conduct and Efficiency poor Acceptable Good Excellent
Courtroom was orderly 1 2 3~ 4
The Judge was courteous and respectful 1 pa 3 4
The Judge was in control* of the proceedings i 2 ‘ §/ 4
Judge was ready/prepared™* for court 1 2/ 3 4
The Prosecution was 'ready/prepared*** for court 1 ;_/ 3 4
The defence was ready/prepared**** forcourt 1 2 3. 4
Cases were handled ina timely manner 2 27 3 4
The judge was impartial 1 2 3 4
individuals were treated equally by
Court staff ' L 2/ 3 4
Transparency and Accountability poor Accepiable Good Excellent
Judge was demonstrably neutral 1 2 :;/ 4
parties were given equal opportunities
to present their cases 1 2 3_‘/ 4
Judge made effort to understand
the concerns of the parties 1 2o 3 4

.| prosecution held accountable***** for actions
that delayed proceedings 1 7 %/ 4
Defence held accountable for actions :
that delayed proceedings y 2 3 4

The interest of the public was adequately

represented ! 1 .2/ 3 4

Communicating Courtroom Proceedings poor Acceptable Good Excellent
Court announced every stage of proceedings 1 2 3 4
Court explained every stage of proceedings ik Dt 3 4
Defendant understood procedures and rulings 1 2/ 3 4

Documenting the Observet's experience

L



| gained better understanding of the court’s role in anti-corruption cases:
Very Much Quite Sa_/ Not sure Not at all

Court process was fair: Very fair Quite FaiL/Not sure Unfair

Courts reaction to observer’s presence: Receptive  Cooperative Hostile indiﬁ‘er’ey

Did your confidence in the court ability to dispense justice increase because you witnessed
proceedings? Very Much QUiW Not sure Not at all

{

What did you find pnost interesting a?put your experience? ..
| B L W |

Notes on certain terms

* A judge is in control when he maintains general courtroom decorum, holds counsel to the highest
levels of compliance with the rules, grants adjournments only for valid reasons and not more times
than is permitted by the rules.

#*yoy can tell that a judge Is unprepared if for instance s/he comes to court without having read the
case file and relevant law, or easily grants adjournments for flimsy reasons.

#%% A prosecutor betrays his or her unpreparedness when he/she betrays a firm grasp of the
cgse/facts and applicable law, a charge or information sheet is found to be defective or the
prosecution fails to ensure that processes have been properly filed, court directives have been
complied with and that prosecution witnesses are in court if the case was set down for the
prosecution’s case.

*x#% |ndications that the defence attorney is unprepared could include gimmicks that are intended
to prevent the court from proceeding with the hearing as scheduled, unscheduled interlocutory
applications, failure to produce defence witnesses, etc.

##x%% A judge holds legal counsels accountable when s/he does not accommodate flimsy excuses
for adjournments, ensures that timelines are kept and a tight lead is kept on adjournments by
upholding the provisions of ACJA and practice directions relating to court room delays and
adjournments. His or her ability to enforce the rules show that s/he retains control of the
proceedings and would were necessary, remonstrate parties and counsel for holding up
proceedings. The judge may also issue consequential orders, order costs where justified, and ensure
that his/her orders are complied with.
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ﬁ%& T Se A K A e : &
1, a. Cause list sighted? & N b.Caseoncause list? &N ){/N
c. Was it easy to identify the case? YN d. Was it easy identify/locate the couriroom? Y —N

Court Observation Form
e

Court Observer: =T ... A Date We of Monitoring Exercise: ... =Kol bseepoos /
Case Title; .5 A[ V MCLKW%CBSE No.: CK/Z?(& K‘
Courtroom Information

............... Judicial Division/District: L Dl baisin Courtroom NOLI v eiiees

4 (cp <

N :
Name of Judge: ..t o e NGNS B ABENCY Of Prosecutor: ..ot fromes it

Defence Counsel ...

CZ\*EEH For how long did you witness court proceedings? G .. & M ’m‘f@

When did the court sit?

o What type of hearing was it? O
* Briefly mention the subject matter of the case antl what stage of hearing it is at
3 Were you allowead to get or peruse a copy of the couriﬂ_record? Y N~
3

Was bail granted? Y N When (date), and what were the conditions of bail (use back of page if \
necessary) e ‘

-
il o

On the back of the page, please provide a very brief comment on the case history, including law under

which the case is tried, previous adjournment and themext adjourned date (4-5 Lines)

e ¥ = i
: mggﬁma.d’ \"g‘a e s e
5 3. Does the court have a wehsite? Y N7 b. Does the website feature a webpage for the

courtroom/judge you are monitoring? Y N e

6. ’ Did you find a web-copy of the cause list with the case listed? ¥ N ; —J
e

7. [ a. Is the website current?  Current Quite Current  Out of Date Very Obsolete ‘
b. Regularity of updates Regular Quite Reguiar lrregula% Very lrregular
| ¢, Accuracy of information Accurate A bit accurate Inach' Misleading \
s : |
d. Did you fing information about your case on the court wepsite? 1
8 How useful did you find the website? Was the site easy to read and navigate?
Does the site have a search function? !
"o, | if the court lacks a website, are there plans to have one? At what stage of development is it? J\
W Does the court have an e-filing and e-messaging system? How is it being deployed in this case/in anti-

corruption cases generally? {Please keep your response to 3 lines on the back of the page).

Al

a. The court sat Y N

onitoring proceeded on schedule ¥~ N
c. Complainant was in court yN d. Prosecution was in court ¥ N

o. The defendant was in court Y _~B f. Defence CounselinCourt ¥ _ N

g. if hearing was delayed, at whose instance was the delay? .

h. What reasons were given for the delay?

f What consequential orders followed?

17. | a. Defendant was in custody Y N/ - J

"b. The case you are m

i b. Subsisting order to produce defendant comptied with ¥ N

L2



. What reasons were given for non-compliance?

2. Witnesses were in Court? M& b. If not, what reasons were given?
c. What conseguential directive if any, did the court give? (you may make additional brief comments

on back page) v LI

Case Prioritization: Did the matter, proceed as set (mention, motion, hearing pfing, address, or

judgment)? W :
How many hours or days were aliocated to the matter? ﬂ{,&ﬁ%{ C’C”@ :
How many interlocutory applications were T L R
If the case was adjourned, at whose instance and for what reasons?

What was the length of adjournment? if it was a long adjournment, what reasons were given?

overall, how frequent are adjournments in the case?

What indicated that the court was giving the case expedited hearing?

General Courtroom Conduct and Efficiency Poor Acceptable  Good Excellent

Courtroom was orderly 1 2 E/ 4

The Judge was courteous and respectful ik gl 3 4

The Judge was in control® of the proceedings i 2 / 4 i
Judge was ready/prepared** for court 1 2 __/ 4

The Prosecution was ready/prepared*** for court 1 \2/ 3 4

The defence was ready/prepared**** for court 1 4 S 4

Cases were handled in a timely manner 1 2 3 4

The judge was impartial 1 2 g./ 4

individuals were treated equally by

Court staff ' ] g i 3 4

Transparency and Accountability Poor Acceptable  Good Excellent

judge was demonstrably neutral il 4 \

parties were given equal opportunities
to present their cases 1
Judge made effort to understand
the concerns of the parties I
Prosecution held accountable***** for actions
that délayed proceedings ‘ 1
Defence held accountable for actions
that delayed proceedings . 1
The interest of the pubiic was adeguately
represented ; it

Communicating Courtroom Proceedings Poor Acceptable  Good Excellent
Court announced every stage of proceedings ik 5 4

Court explained every stage of proceedings o} ‘V s 4
Defendant understood procedures and rulings 1 21 3 4

Documenting the Observer’s experience



| gained better understanding of the court’s role in anti-corruption cases:

Very Much / Quite So ; Notsure . Notatall
Court process was fair: Very fair Quite fai/ Not sure Unfair

Courts reaction to observer's presence: Receptive ~ Cooperative Hostile indifferent
3 ./'-‘

Did your confidence in the court ability to dispense justice increase because you witnessed
proceedings?  Very Much Quite So Not sure Not at all
G

What did you find most interesting about your experiencey ...

"G (et S Wb

Notes on certain terms

* A judge isin control when he maintains general courtroom decorum, holds counsel to the highest
levels of compliance with the rules, grants adjournments only for valid reasons and not more times
than is permitted by the rules.

o J

**yoy can tell that a judge is unprepared if for instance s/he comes to court without having read the
case file and relevant law, or easily grants adjournments for flimsy reasons.

**% A prosecutor betrays his or her unpreparedness when he/she betrays a firm grasp of the
case/facts and applicable law, a charge or information sheet is found to be defective or the
prosecution fails to ensure that processes have been properly filed, court directives have been
complied with and that prosecution witnesses are in court if the case was set down for the
prosecution’s case.

xx%% |ndications that the defence attorney is unprepared could include gimmicks that are intended
to prevent the court from proceeding with the hearing as scheduled, unscheduled interlocutory
applications, failure to produce defence witnesses, etc.

*xxx% A judge holds legal counsels accountable when s/he does not accommaodate flimsy excuses
for adjournments, é;nsures that timelines are kept and a tight lead is kept on adjournments by
upholding the provisions of ACIA and practice directions relating to court room delays and
adjournments. His or her ability. to enforce the rules show that s/he retains control of the
proceedings and would were hecessary, remonstrate parties and counsel for holding up
proceedings. The judge may also issue consequential orders, order costs where justified, and ensure
that his/her orders are complied with.

&



IN THE HIGH COURT OF THE FEDERAL CAPITAL TERRITORY

IN THE ABUJA JUDICIAL DIVISION
HOLDEN AT ABUJA

o :
BEFORE HIS LORDSHIP: THE HON. JUSTICE PETER O. AFFEN

THURSDAY, MARCH 2, 2017

CHARGE NO. FCT/HC/CR/87/2014

BETWEEN:
COMMISSIONER OF POLICE PROSECUTION

AND

1. SHEDRACH CLEMENT SALISU
2. WISDOM SUNDAY DEFENDANTS
3. AUWAL MOHAMMED

JUDGMENT

"THE DEFENDANTS herein, Shedrach Clement Salisu, Wisdom Sunday

and Auwal Mohammed were arraigned on a two (2) count charge of
armed robbery punishable under s. I (2) (a) of the Robbery and
Firearms (Special Provisions) Act, Cap. R11, Laws of the Federation of
Nigeria, 2004. The specifics of the charge. are as follows:

COUNT 1
That you Shedrach Clement Salisu:’Male' 30 years of Gwagwalada

behind Hajj Camp, Abuja, Auwal Mohammed 'Male’ 32 years and

T
i X
- %Q Wisdom Sunday 'Male’ 35 years and others now at large on or about
cz=E - =
e 3%-5 the 6t day of September, 2013, Behind Hajj Camp Gwagwalada within
;;g the Abuja Judicial Division, while armed with a prohibited firearm, you
- "@g S robbed Bamigbade Yemisi Family of household items valued at about
o m
I' :%f_} Three Hundred and Fifty Thousand Naira (M350,000.00). You thereby
E%%%T‘:g committed an cffencé punishable under section 1 (2) (a) of Robbery -




and Firearms (Special Provisions) Act, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria,
2004. '

COUNT 2

That you Shedrach Clement Salisu ‘Male’ 30 years of Gwagwalada
behind Hajj Camp, Abuja, Auwal Mohammed ‘Male’ 32 years and
‘Wisdom Sunday ‘Male’ 35 years and others at large on or about the 6%
day of September, 2013, Behind Hajj Camp Gwagwalada within the
Abuja Judicial Division, while armed with a prohibited firearm, you
robbed Bamigbade Yemisi Family of a cash sum of Ten Thousand Naira
(410,000.00). You thereby committed an offence punishable under
section 1 (2) (a) of Rdbbery and Firearms (Special Provisions) Act, Laws-
of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004.

The Defendants pleaded 'Not Guilty', thereby setting the stage for the
prosecution to prove their guilt. In a frantic bid to discharge this non-

shifting burden, the Prosecution called five (5) witnesses and tendered

Exhs. P1 - P 54t The complainant and victim of the alleged armed
robbery, Mrs Yemisi Bamigbade testified as PWI1; one Victor Olabisi
‘lwho is a member of the vigilante group at Hajj Camp, Gwagawalada]
testified as PW2; whilst the Sgt. Musa Emmanuei, Insp. lliya Ezekiel and
Cpl. Celestine Nyigba [who are police officers] testified as PW3, PW4 and
PW5 respectively. Each of the Defendants testified for himself in defence
of the charge and did not field any other witness. Exh. P1 is the il
Defendant's extrajudicial statement dated 9/9/13; Exh. P2 is the 3
Defendant's extrajudicial statement dated 13/9/13; Exh. P3 is the 2
Defendants extra-judicial statement dated 13/9/13; Exh. P4 is a pump
action gun; Exhs. P5** are other items said to have been recovered from
the crime scene and produced from the custody of the exhibit keeper;
whilst Exh. D6 is the 1** Defendant's extrajudicial statement 6/9/13 which

was recorded by PC Elijah Abur. —
FCT-Abuja
H‘g Court of Justice
TRUE COP
__ ‘?""RT"—.:JEE SSHE HU
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Testifying as PW1, the complainant, Mrs Yemisi Bamigbade stated that
she is a civil servant at Local Education Authority, Gwagwalada Area
Council, FCT, Abuja and lives at Hajj Camp, Gwagwalada; and that the i
and 2" Defendants as well as Victor Olabisi [PW2] who is a member of
the Vigilante Group at Hajj Camp in Gwagwalada, Abuja are well known
to her. She stated that at about 12:10 a.m. in the early 6/9/13, she saw
a flashlight beaming at her security house and thought it was the
vigilante men on patrol, but she heard a knock on her window about
_ five minutes later, and when she asked who it was, the shocking
response was. ‘We are armed robbers’l; that they opened the sliding
window, put a gun through the window and pointed the flashlight on
the gun so that she could see clearly what they were holding and
ordered her to open the door, whereupon she ran into her children’s
coom and asked them to inform the vigilante men that armed robbers
were in their house, after which she opened the door to her sitting
room and four (4) robbers then came in, took her laptop, plasma TV, her
husband's telephone and the sum of 10, 000 and left the house; that
she then heard the voices of vigilante men shouting, “pursue them”; that
soldiers at the nearby checkpoint joined the members of the vigilante
group; and in the morning, the soldiers and Victor Olabisi [PW2] who is
a member of the vigilante group brought Shedrach [1* Defendant] to
her house as one of the suspects and left for the police station with
him: that about an hour later, she was invited to the police station
where she made a statement; that the matter was transferred two days
later to the-Police Headquarters and she accompanied the police at
Gwagwalada Area Command to the Police Headquarters, and the matter

was transfzrred that same day to the Spec1a| Anti- Robbery Squad (SARS)

ngh Court of Justi sz
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where she made another statement, that officers of SARS came to her
house two days later at about 2.00 a.m. with the 1 Defendant who told
her they were looking for Wilson [2M Defendant] as one of the suspects
and that her laptop was with Wilson; and she called the vigilante men

that night to inform them that Wilson was being looked for.

Under cross examination by G. E. Adole, Esq. for the Defendants, the
PW1 stated that the incident occurred on 6/9/13; that she did not
recognise any of the Defendants that day; and that four (4) robbers
-aided her house but she could not recognise any of them as they were

pointing flashlight on her.

The PW2, Victor Olabisi stated that he lives behind Hajj Camp in
Gwagwalada where he i< also a member of the Vigilante Group; that
the complainant, Mrs Yemisi Bamigbade [PW1] as well as the 1% and i
_Defendants are well known to him; that himself and four of his vigilante
colleagues [Wale, Dele Michael, Solomon Faleke and Ola O.ladimeji] were
on duty at Hajj Camp and resumed work at about 10.00 p.m. on 5/9/13;
that one of his colleagues [Wale] told him at about 1155 p.m. that he
saw/heard a group of boys discussing in Hausa language that they were
going to rob in a place where a new car had just been bought,
whereupon he and two of his colleagues traced the boys to Wale's
house but did not find them; that ‘they searched an uncompleted
building in the vicinity where they found a boy who works as a labourer
at Hajj Camp but whose name he could not readily recall; that the boy
showed him the road Shadrach and other boys took, and that as he and

his colleagues were on the way 1o Shadrach'’s house he received a call
| High Court of ! '
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from one Kehinde [who lives with Mrs Bamigbade] informing him in a

hushed tone that armed robbers were operating in their house; that on
getting to Mrs Bamigbade's house, he saw Shadrach and four ‘guys’
outside whilst some others were inside the house; that he asked his
colleagues to exercise caution as Shadrach was wielding a gun; that he
saw two ‘guys’ come out of Mrs Bamigbade‘é house: one had a Plasma
TV on his head whilst the other was holding a laptop computer; that he
did not recognise the others but he knew Shadrach very well; that they
then made some noise and Shadrach threw away the gun and the
person with the Plasma TV equally dropped it and ran way; that he and
his colleagues pursued after them and took the road leading to
Shadrach’s house where they met Shadrach’s brother at home and
enquired after Shadrach but was told he went out with some ‘guys’; that
two of his colleagues (i.e. Ola and Suleiman) hung around Shadrach’s
house, whilst two others and himself decided to return to Mrs
.Bamigbade's house; that on their way to her house, they found the gun
in the nearby bush, which they handed over to the soldiers from the
nearby check-point who joined them at that point and accompanied
them to Shadrach’s house but he was still not at home; that the soldiers
then left whilst he and his colleagues hung around until about 5.00 a.m.
.when Shadrach returned home and they arrested him and. called the
soldiers who came and took all of them to the Gwagwalada Area
Cammand, where he made a statement. He. stated further that the IPO
informed him two days later that the matter was being transferred to
SARS, whereupon himself, his colleague (Ola) and Mrs Bamigbade went |

to SARS where he made another stateément; that officials from SARS

|

came to Gwagwalada with Shadrach the n [Hidegoamar ] t0
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come to Mrs Bamigbade’s house where he was told they were looking

for 'Omoba’ [i.e. the 2" Defendant] who used to visit Mrs Bamigbade’s
house and who ‘was said to taken have part in the robbery; that they
saw Omoba the next day and called him but he ran into a nearby bush
'where they caught him and took him to the Gwagwalada Area

Command.

Under cross examination by G. E. Adole, Esq. of counsel for the
Defendants, the. PW2 maintained that the incident happened on 5/9/13
but he reported to the police the following morning [i.e. 6/9/13]. He
conceded that he wrote his first statement on 6/9/13 at Gwagwalada
Area Command by himself; and insisted that he knew Shadrach very well
and recognised him at the scene of the robbery, and that Shadrach
equally knew him as a vigilante member, that Shadrach was wearing a
particular black and white polo shirt he used to wear with a black jacket
on top that very day; that immediately Shadrach made noise with the
gun, he [PW2] looked and confirmed that was Shadrach. The PW2
maintained that their vigilante group has no special name and that he
had his ID card wi'th him: that the distance between where he and his
colleagues were hiding in the bush and where Shadrach [1** Defendant]
stood was approximately eight (8) metres; that Shadrach was wielding a
‘cock and shoot’ pump action gun; that he made a second statement
three (3) days after his first statement; and that he saw Shadrach ‘with
one Ibo boy who is not among the Defendants standing trial before this
court. He insisted that he only recognised Shadrach and rejected the

suggestion that he has identified or pointed at Shadrach as one of the
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Sgt. Musa Emmanuel [PW3] stated that he is a Sergeant and an

investigator at" Divisional Crime Bureau (DCB), Divisional Police
Headquarters, Gwagwalada; that he knew the Defendants as well as Mrs
Yemisi Bamigbade (PW1) and Victor Oiabisi-(PW2); that he was on duty
at DCB, Gwagwalada when some army officers brought two suspects,
namely: Shadrach Clement and Salisu Mohammed along with a Beretta
gun, spear/arrow Nokia handset and battery for phone; and that they
also came along with Olabisi [PW2] who is a vigilante member. He
further stated that he visited the scene of crime at Hajj Camp and that
<tatements were taken from Olabisi [PW2] and the two suspects under
caution; that he recorded the 2" Defendant’s statement whilst that of
the 1%t Defendant was recorded by Constable Elijah Abur; that the
complainant [PW1] visited the station the following day and her
statement was equally taken; that the complainant and the suspects
_were interviewed by the DCO and DPO, and upon discovering that the
case was beyond the jurisdiction of the Divisional Police Headquarters,
the matter was transferred to SARS for further investigation and the

suspects and exhibits were handed over to SARS.

Under cross examination by G. E Adole, Esqg. of counsel for the
Defendants, the PW3 agreed that he made a statement on 5/9/13 which
he wrote by himself and that-he witnessed the alleged robbery. But
upon re-examination by P. A. Ogele, Esq. of counsel for the Prosecution,
the PW3 stated that what he meant was that he visited the scene of the |
robbery, and not that he witnessed the robbery.

High Corrt of Justice
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The PW4, Insp. lliya Ezekiel stated that he is an Inspector of Police with

the Special Anti-Robbery Squad (SARS) at FCT Police Command; that
Cpl. Celestine Nyigba and himself are in the same investigation team at
SARS: that a case of criminal conspiracy and armed robbery was
transferred from Gwagwalada to CID, FCT Police Command on 7/9/13
and minuted to SARS for inv"estigation;‘that the team headed by Supd!
Gerald Okere waé detailed to carry out the investigation and Cpl.
Celestine Nyigba was appointed as the [PO; that the suspects were
transferred along with the case file, one single barrel gun and other
exhibits; that he recorded the statement of the 1%t Defendant after he
was cautioned and the 1%t Defendant understood the cautionary words
and signed the statement; that after recording the statement, he took
the 1%t Defendant to his superior officer, Gerald Okere who read the
statement to 1%t Defendant's hearing before he signed it and the
superior officer countersigned. The PW4 identified the 1* Defendant’s
_extrajudicial statement dated 9/9/13 which was admitted in evidence
and marked Exh. P1 after conducting a trial-within-trial to ascertain the
voluntariness vel non of the said statement. The PW4 further testified
that he was instructed by the IPO, Cpl. Celestine Nyigba on 13/9/13 to
record the statement of Auwal Mohammed 3¢ Defendant] who was
duly cautioned; that the cautionary words were read over to him in
Hausa Language and he understood it and signed before the statement
was recorded at the general office; that the 31 Defendant freely. gave his
statement which was recorded and he read over the statement to the
3d  Defendant who clearly understood it and signed, before he |
countersigned the statement as the recorder and handed it over to the

PO, Cpl Celestine Nyigba. The PW4 }

tified the 39 Defendant's
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extrajudicial statement dated 13/9/13 and the same was admitted in

“evidence without objection as Exh. P2,

Under cross examination by G. E. Adole, Esg. of counsel for the
Defendants, the PW4 maintained that he signed Exhs. P1 and P2 as the
recorder. He pointed out his signatdre and the counter signature of
Supol Gerald Okere in Exhs. P1 and P2, and stated that he was a
member of the investigation team. The PW4 rejected the suggestion
that he did nothing else apart from taking the statements of the 1* and
3rd Defendants, insisting that he was actively involved in the arrest of

Auwal Mohammed [3™ Defendant].

The PWS, Cpl. Celestine Nyigba, a police officer attached to State CID at

SARS, stated that he knew Insp. lliya Ezekiel [PW4], Yemisi Bamigbade
[PW1], Victor Olabisi [PW2] as well as the Defendants; that a case of
_criminal  conspiracy and armed .robbery was ftransferred from
Gwagwalada to SARS on 9/9/13 along with the 1% Defendant and two
others, namely: Haruna and Okechukwu; that the case was reported by
Mrs Yemisi Bamigbade [PW1] of Hajj Camp, Gwagwalada; that one
automatic pump action gun was transferred along with the case file and
the suspects, one black and yellow t-shirt, one white and cream long-
sleeved jacket, a stick and arrow; that the case was registered and
referred to them for investigation; that a member of his team, Insp. lliya
Ezeklel [PW4] recorded the statement of the 1% Defendant who .

exonerated Haruna and Okechukwu that they extended their

investigation to Gwagwalada where Wisdom Sunday and Auwal
M




to their office as members of Shadrach’s gang which comprises six

members but the other three members are still at large; that Insp. Iliya
also recorded the statement of Auwal Mohammed [3 Defendant] whilst
Wisdom Sunday [2nd Defendant] wrote his own statement; and that they
visited the scene of crime at Hajj Camp, Gwagwalada where the exhibits
mentioned earlier were found. The extrajudicial statement of Wisdom
Sunday [2"® Defendant] dated 13/9/13 was admitted in evidence without
objection as Exh. P3.  The PW5 stated that the items transferred to

. them along with the case file were registered with the Exhibit Keeper at

SARS office. The pump action gun was admitted in evidence as Exh. P4,
whilst the residue of the items were collectively marked as Exhs. P5AE
His further testimony was that Mrs Bamigbade [PW1] and other
eyewitnesses, Victor [PWZ] and Danjuma who accompanied her made
statements; that the t-shirt and long-sleeved shirt were identified as
belonging to Shadrach [1¥ Defendant]; that Wisdom Sunday [2™
Defendant] was the complainant's internal security who knew that she
had bought a new car, whilst Auwal (3 Defendant] bought the stolen

items.

Under cross examination by G. E. Adole, Esq. of counsel for the
Defendants, the PWS5 insisted that the 15t Defendant exonerated
Okechukwu and Haruna in his extrajudicial statement [Exh. P1]; that he
has been a police officer for over 15 years and had previously
investigated criminal allegations of this nature; that he does not know
Sgt. Musa Emmanuel and could not also tell if he came across anyone

called PC Elijah Abur in the course of investigation since the police
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of them personally. He however conceded that PC Elijah Abur recorded
the 1% Defendant's statement at Gwagwalada, but stated that he [PC
Elijah Abur] was not the one who handed over the case file to him. He
equally conceded that the recovered items were not found bn the
Defendants, but rejected the suggestion that the Defendants were

tortured before they made their statements.

The Prosecution closed its case with the testimony of PWS5, and the

defence opened with the 1% Defendant, Shadrach Clement Salisu

testifying as DWL1. He stated that he is 32 years old and a bricklayer;
that he was arrested on 6/9/13 by OPC Vigilante, taken to a house
behind Hajj Camp,' Gwagwalada and handed over to soldiers who
tortured him before he was handed over to officers of the Divisional
Police Headquarters in Gwagwalada where he made a statement on
6/9/13 [Exh. D6] which was recorded by PC Elijah Abur and he signed it.
’The 15t Defendant [DW1] further testified that he was taken to SARS on
9/9/13 where Cpl Celestine Nyigba [PW5] and one Biggy tortured him
after the complainant had left; that they used iron, stick and cable wire
to beat him to the point that he was injured on his knee and back; that
he did not know why he was being tortured but at last they brought a
statement which he signed because they threatened to kill him if he
refused to do so; that he signed two statements at SARS: one at the
counter and the other at the ‘torturing room’; that he met Wisdom 2=

Defendant] for the first time in the cell at SARS but knew Auwal

Mohammed [3™ Defendant] previously gathe one who converted him to
H'Qh Court of Jyjnr:
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Gwagwalada when he was arrested at 5.30 a.m. on 6/9/13. He denied

knowing anything about the armed robbery allegation levelled against
him, and stated that he met Victor Olabisi [PW2] whom he had known
as a vigilan{e member when he [PW2] came to make statement at SARS;
and that both Haruna and himself were arrested by the vigilante and

handed over to the soldiers.

Under Cross examination by P. A Ogeie Esq. of counsel for the
Prosecutlon the 15t Defendant conceded that his house from where he
was arrested and the place he was first taken to by the vigilante men
after his arrest are both situate behind Hajj Campl, Gwagwalada; and that
he is well known in the vicinity. He denied knowing Isa Dare, but
conceded that he knew Lola Gurgu li.e. 3™ Defendant] and one Dauda
Danjuma who is a labourer; and maintained that he would be surprised
to hear that Danjuma informed the police that he [1%t Defendant] did
ot sleep at home that very night but came home early in the morning.
He denied having any t-shirt, or being alone when he was arrested, or
having any slippers, insisting that he only had palm sandals, and that his
shoe size is 43 whilst his shirt size is 'small’. The 1%t Defendant insisted
that the one leg of slippers, t-shirt and long-sleeved shirt.do not belong
to him; and that he would be surprised that residents of his
ne1ghbourhood have identified him as the owner of the t-shirt and
long _sleeved shirt. He rejected the suggestlon that he threatened people
with pump action gun, or that he threw away any gun when members

of the vigilante group were pursuing them, insisting that he does not
know anything about the gun qr Higheotte e maintai
e IR 2 ﬁé&ﬁT“ ! jRUE Py i hed
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arrested by the same officers, insisting that the others met him in the
cell and all of them were tortured. The 1% Defendant rejected the
suggestion that it was because of his involvement in, and confession to,
the armed robbery that he was being charged whilst those arrested
along with him were left off the hook. He denied selimg any item to
Auwal [3™ Defendant] and maintained that he was in his house on the
day of the alleged incident; that he did not tell the police anything but
was tortured to sign the statement; that he did not know Celestine
[PW4] and Ezekiel [PW3] prior to his arrest, and that ke hails from
Kujama in Chukun LGA of Kaduna State. The 1st Defendant denied
having worked for Mrs Yemisi Bamigbade [PW1] but conceded knowing
Engr. Victor Dogsun and Isah and that he would not be surprised that
their names are mentioned in his statement because Victor is his brother
whilst Isah is his friend and he mentioned them. He acknowledged his
signature in Exh. P1 but denied that he was taken before any senior
police officer after making his statement at Command. The 1
Defendant rejected the suggestion that he and Isah belong to the same
armed robbery gang or that he is well known to Victor Olabisi [PW2]
and vice versa: and stated that the team of policemen that arrested him
which comprises of about five persons were present when his statement
was taken at the counter in SARS office, but he did not sign the
statement immediately. He maintained that he and Dauda Danjuma
were in his room at the time of his arrest but Dauda was not arrested
along with him; and rejected the suggestion that he alone was arrested

because of his involvement in the armed robbery, insisting that he was

bery. Theq-Refendant equally rej
not aware of any such robbery o B eenoanL gjected the

i CT-
CZRTIFIED TRUF - —wﬁ’”’a

13| Page




suggestion that he made his statement voluntarily, insisting that he was-

tortured and told to sign.
Testifying as DW2, the 2" Defendant Wisdom Sunday stated that he

works as a labourer and that he was arrested on 13/9/13 at Hajj Camp,
Gwagwalada whilst on his way to a site near CKC where he gets his dally
bread by members of the Vigllante Group who informed him that he
was being arrested in connection with a robbery incident that occurred
close to the place he was working, and he was taken by the vigilante to
the scene of the alleged robbery and eventually to SARS; that he denied
being involved in any robbery and Celestine Nyigba [PWS5] tortured him
to confess to a crime he did not commit; that the torturing caused
problem in his ear as puss was coming out of his ear such that he could
not hear for about three months. He denied having met or known the
other Defendants charged along with him prior to his arrest and
detention at SARS and insisted that Celestine Nyigba [PW5] tortured him

whilst he was in custody.

Cross-examined by P. A. Ogele, Esq. of counsel for the Prosecution, the
ond Defendant maintained that he does not know Yemisi Bamigbade
[PW1]; and that he was at his residence on the night of 12/9/13; that he
neither lives in the neighbourhood of Hajj Camp, Gwagwalada nor does
he work for Yemisi Bamigbade [PW1]; that his master is a man and he
had never worked in Bamigbade's house. He maintained that he neither -
knew nor had any relationship with Shadrach [1¥ Défendant] and would
~ be surprised that Shadrach mentioned his name as one of those who

went with him to rob; that he was seriously tortured at the counter in

SARS office to confess that he fgRREC-Ne-Sa migbade but he refused to
fi ,."1:_'_ rt of Jus Arce FCT-Abuyja
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do so; and that he would be surprised to hear that he was given

8410000 out of the proceeds of the robbery, insisting that nobody gave
" him any money. He stated that his residence is fairly distant from the
scene of the alleged robbery; that he did not make any confession in his
statement as he refused to confess to a crime he did not commif and
dared the police to proceed to Kkill him if they so wished. The 2
Defendant maintained that he is a labourer and denied being present at
Mrs. Yemisi Bamigbade's house, or being involved in any robbery, or
knowing Victor Olabisi [PW2], or ever being an OPC man or member of
Viglante Group. He stated that he hails from Kwara State and is of
Yoruba origin, but insisted that Shadrach [1* Defendant] must be

referring to a different Yoruba man other than himself.

The 3 Defendant, Auwal Mohammed testified as DW3. His evidence

was interpreted from Hausa to English and vice versa by Sadiq Ibrahim,
.a Senior Executive Officer (Special Duties) in the High Court of FCT. The
3d Defendant stated that he is a businessman at Pantaker market in
Gwagwalada where he sells electrical materials; that he was arrested on
g3/9/13 in his residence at Sabongari, Gwagwalada by the police from
“SARS who broke in at about 3:00 am, that they showed Shadrach to

s and informed him that Shadrach and his gang committed armed
gg | bbery at Hajj Camp and that Shadrach sold a stolen laptop to him. He
§§ ¢ated that he vehemently disagreed  with them as he had not seen
‘;?E;(rl adrach for more than three (3) years, at which point Celestine Nyigba
,)4 ' DW5] slapped him and said he would be taken to a place he will speak

~

—out to their general office at about 10.00 p.m. the next day for_ the
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purpose of taking his statement; that one Iliya cautioned him to tell the

truth but after taking his statement, Iliya informed Celestine Nyigba that

he [31 Defendant] did not accept that Shadrach sold laptop to him,
whereupon Celestine Nyigba started torturing him by beating and
hitting him with stick, and demanded that he must tell the truth; that he
maintained his stance that there was nothing connetting him and
Shadrach but Celestine continued to torture him to the extent that he
could not even stand; that at that point, they [i.e. the police] brought a
paper and asked him to'sign, which he did, and he was taken back to
the cell: that on 19/9/13, he was brought out together with Wisdom [z
Defendant] and taken to Wisdom's residence, but nothing was found
there; and that he pleaded with the police to visit his own residence too
. order to ascertain if there was any stolen items there, but they
refused to go to his residence but took them back to SARS saying he
would tell them the truth Whenever he was ready. The 3™ Defendant
stated that he knew Shadrach some three (3) years and a few months
prior to his arrest on 13/9/13 through his brother, Isiaku who brought

Shadrach because he wished to convert to Islam; and that he had never

met Wisdom [2" Defendant] prior to his arrest on 13/9/13.

Under cross examination by P. A. Ogele, Esq. of counsel for the
Prosecution, the 3 Defendant maintained that he does not live behind
Hajj Camp, Gwagwalada or in the same neighbourhood with Shadrach;
but conceded that Lola and Gurgu are his nicknames, and that he hails
from Katsina State and was previously a builder before he went into sale
of electronics. He insisted that there has been no exchange of items or

any other transaction between him and Shadrach since they met, and
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rejected the suggestion that he was chased out of Pantaker market in
Gwagwalada for purchasing or selling stolen items. The 3™ Defendant
maintained that he would be surprised to hear that Shadrach claimed to
have sold stolen items to him; but conceded that Salisu Ali is the
chairman at Pantaker market in Gwagwalada, whilst Suleiman, Chinaka,
Baluru, Jimoh and Aliyu are his business associates in the market. He
reiterated that the police broke into his house at about 3.00 p.m. on

13/9/13 and showed Shadrach 10 him, and rejected the suggestion that

. he received any laptop from Shadrach, insisting that there was no

transaction between him and Shadrach: and that Celestine Nyigba [PWS5]

tortured him to the extent that he was bleeding.

The conclusion of the 3 Defendant’s testimony signalled the closure of
plenary trial, and the parties filed and exchanged written final addresses
as ordered by the Court, which addresses were adopted in open court
by learned counsel on both sides of the divide on 15/12/16. The
‘Defendants’ final address is dated 16/11/16 whilst the Prosecution’s final

Lkaddress .« dated 9/12/16. Save for slight variations in phraseology, the

ole issue distilled for determination in the final addresses filed by the
Hefence and the prosecution is whether the prosecution has discharged
Hhe burden of establishing the Defendants' guilt on the criminal

;' hreshold of proof beyond reasonable doubt in the peculiar facts and

2/¥ kcircumstances of the case at hand.

&% Now, our adversary criminal justice system is accusatorial in nature and

substance, and every person charged with a criminal offence is
presumed innocent until proved guilty. See s. 36(5) of the Constitution
of the Federal Republic of Nigeria, 1999 (as amended). A necessary

corollary of the presumptlon of mnocence Is that the burden is always
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on the prosecution to establish the guilt of the accused person beyond
reasonable doubt. Quite unlike civil proceedings, this burden on the
prosecution is static in a manner akin to the fabled constancy of the
‘Northern Star’ and never shifts to the accused. It is if, and only if, the
prosecution succeeds in proving the commission of a crime beyond
reasonable doubt that the burden shifts to the accused to establish that
reasonable doubt exists. See ss. 135 and 137 of the Evidence Act
2011. The prosecution has the onus of proving all the material
ingredien.ts of the offence(s) charged beyond reasonable doubt. See
STATE v SADU [2001] 33 WRN 21 at 40. Where the prosecution fails
to discharge this burden, the charge is not made out and the court is
bound in duty to record a verdict of discharge and acquittal. See
MAJEKODUNMI v THE NIGERIAN ARMY [2002] 31 WRN 138 at 147.
Also, if on the totality of the evidence adduced, the court were left in a
state of uncertainty or doubt, the prosecution would have failed to
discharge the onus of proof cast upon it by law and the accused would
be entitled to an acquittal. See UKPE v STATE [2001] 18 WRN 84 at
* 105. However, in the words of the venerable Lord Denning in the case
¢ MILLER v MINISTER OF PENSIONS (1947) 2 ALL ER. 372: "Proof

<£rtbeyom:/ reasonable doubt does not mean proof beyond the shadow of a
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oubt The law would fail to protect the community if it admitted
\onciful possibilities to deflect the coursé of justice. If the evidence is so
Mtrong against a man as to leave only a remote possibility in his favour

Shhich can be-dismissed with the sentence ‘of course it'is possible, but

Shot in the least probable; the case Is. [established] beyond reasonable
Ak doubt, but nothing short of that will suffice’. See also AKALEZI v THE

MJSC 27. The three modes of evidential proof in a criminal trial such as
the present are: (a) direct evidence of witnesses; (b) circumstantial

evidence; and (c) the confessional statemient voluntarily made by a
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criminal defendant. See OKUDO v THE STATE [2011] 3 NWLR (PT.
1234) 209 at 236, ADIO v THE STATE (1986) 5 S.C. 194 at 219-220,
EMEKA v THE STATE [2002] 14 NWLR (PT. 734) 666 and OLABODE
ABIRIFON v THE STATE [2013] 13 NWILR (PT.1372) 587 at 596.
Against the backdrop of the foregoing, the straightforward issue arising
for determination is whether the prosecution has adduced sufficient,
| cogent, credible and compelling evidence to establish the charge
against the accused persons beyond reasonable doubt; and it is on this

basis that-we shall proceed presently to evaluate the evidence adduced.

The charge against the Defendants las set out hereinbefore] is that the

Defendants and others now at large, while armed with a prohibited
firearm, robbed the' Yemisi Bamigbade Family of #10,000.00 in cash and
household items valued at about 2350,000.00 on or about &
September 2013, which is an offence punishable under s. I(2)(a) of the

Robbery and Firearms (Special Provisions) Act, Cap. R11, Laws of the

Lfederatfon of Nigeria, 2004. The charge is one of armed robbery, and

A~ order to secure conviction, the prosecution is obligated to

onstrate that:

(i) there was a robbery or series of robberies;
(i) the defendant(s) participated in the robbery or series of

robberies; and
(i) the defendant() was armed with an offensive weapon or in

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY

the company of those so armed.

ce  OLAYINKA v STATE [2007] 9 NWLR (PT. 1040) 561,
NWACHUKWU v STATE [1985] 3 NWLR (PT. 11) 218, SUBERU v *
STATE [2010] 8 NWLR (PT. 1197) 586, BOZIN v THE STATE [1985] 2
NWLR (PT. 8) 465, ANI v THE STATE [2003] 11 NWLR (PT. 830) 145;
ATTAH. v THE STATE [2010] 10 NWLR (PT.1201) 190 at 244,
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OLAYINKA v THE STATE [2007] 9 NWLR (PT.1040) 561 and OGUDU v
STATE [2012] ALL FWLR (PT. 629) 1011.
The three modes of evidential proof by which the prosecution may
establish the guilt of a criminal defendant are set out hereinbefore.
Whereas the 15t Defendant's extrajudicial statement dated 9/9/13 [Exh.
- P1] is confessional in nature, the extrajudicial statements of the 2n and-
31d Defendants dated 13/9/13 [ie. Exhs. P3 and P2 respectively] are not'
confessional statements. At the hearing, objection was taken to the
admissibility of the 1% Defendant's extrajudicial staternent [Exh. P1] on
the ground that it was not voluntarily made and a trial-within-trial was
conducted. The objection was overruled when the 1% Defendant's stance
shifted from 'mot making the statement voluntarily’ to 'not making any
statement at all’. It would seem therefore that the Prosecution is relying
on both direct evidence of an eyewitness and the confessional
statement of the 1% Defendant in seeking to establish the Defendants’

guilt.

'Judging by the evidence adduced before me (as reproduced in extenso
& above), there is little or no doubt that there was an armed robbery
=& incident at the residence of Mrs Yemisi Bamigbade [PW1] situate behind
\L? Hajj Camp, Gwagwalada on 6/9/13. Both the victim of the robbery, Mrs
Ti[pamigbade [PW1] and Victor Olabisi [PW2] who is a member of
Vigilante Group at Hajj Camp, Gwagwalada gave direct and positive
evidence of the robbery incident. The PW1 testified that at about 12:10

tla.m. on 6/9/13, she saw a flashlight beaming at her security house and

' thought it was the vigilante men on patrol, but when she heard a knock

| on her window few minutes later and asked who it was, the shocking *

response was: ‘We are armed robbers’!; and that they opened her sliding
window, put a gun through the window and pointed the flashlight on

the gun to ensure that she saw clearly that they were holding a gun
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before ordering her to open the door, whereupon she ran into her
children's room and asked them to inform the vigilante of the presence
of armed robbers in their house; that when she opened the door to her
sitting room, four (4) robbers came into the house, took away her
laptop, plasma TV her husband's telephone and the sum of #%10,000.
Not dissimilarly, the PW2 testified that he and other members of the
vigilante group were on duty at Hajj Camp, Gwagwalada when one of
his colleagues informed him at about 11:55 p.m. on 5/9/13 that he
saw/heard a group of boys discussing in Hausa language that they were
plannmg to rob a house where a new car had just been bought,
whereupon he and two of his colleagues traced the boys to Wale's
house and searched an uncompleted building in the vicinity without
luck and in the process he received a call from one Kehinde [who lives
with Mrs Bamigbade] informing him in a hushed tone that armed
robbers were operating in their house; that on getting there, he saw
Shadrach and four ‘guys’ outside whilst some others were inside the
house: that the 1%t Defendant [whom he recognised quite well] was
‘wielding a gun and he asked his colleagues to exercise caution; that he
saw two 'guys’ come out of the house: one had a Plasma TV on his
head whilst the other was holding a laptop; and that they made some
noise and Shadrach threw away the gun and the person with the Plasma

TV equally dropped it and ran whilst he and his colleagues pursued after
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them.

‘ G. A. Adole, Esq. of counse_l fdr the Defendants has argued that the
evidence presented by the Prosecution is riddled with contradictions in
'_ .. that whilst the PW1 gave evidence that the alleged robbery took place
om 6/9/13 at about 12:10 a.m., the PW2 stated that the incident

occurred on 5/9/13. It however does not seem to me that there IS

anything in the evidence adduced that vindicates the above contention
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nor is there any such contradiction as has been alleged. The records in
the case file before me reveal that the PW2 did not say the robbery
incident took place on 5/9/13. No. Rather what he said is that he and
his colleagues resumed duty at Hajj Camp at about 10.00 p.m. on
5/9/13 and one of his colleagues [Wale] informed him at about 11:55
p.m. that he saw/heard a group of boys discussing in Hausa that they
were going to rob in a place where a new car had just been bought,
whereupon he and two of his colleagues traced the boys to an
uncompleted building to no avail: and that in the process he received a
call from one Kehinde informing him of the presence of armed robbers
at Mrs Bamigbade's house. It is not difficult in the least to appreciate
from the testimony of PW2 that although he and his vigilante colleagues
started tracing the'boys from about 11:55 p.m. on 5/9/13 [which is
barely five minutes to midnight], it was already the next day [i.e. 6/9/13]
by the time the PWZ2 received the telephone call from Kehinde and
eventually got to Mrs Bamigbade's residence. There is therefore no
contradiction whatsoever in the testimonies of both PW1 and PW2 on
‘the date of the robbery, and I entertain no reluctance whatsoever in
- finding and holding that there was a robbery incident at Mrs
Bamigbade's residence on 6/9/13 as alleged by the Prosecution.

3 How the second and third constituent elements the prosecution is
> j
gg'% '?'equired to establish in a charge of armed robbery [such as the present]
1 J

_3%;5. ®are whether the defendant(s) participated in the robbery and were
?EU)" 15 . 0

ggg.armed with an offensive weapon or in. the company of those so armed.
r% E—fﬁ The PW1 testified that robbers invaded her house with the aid of a gun
Oy o ; : "
g"—" “Hat about 12:10 a.m. on 6/9/13 and made away with M10,000 cash, TV °
Lis :9
=

"*—"-—iset laptop and other valuables. But she stated emphatically that she did
not recognise any of the robbers because they were pointing flashlight

at her. Her evidence is-therefore not helpful at all in determining
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whether the Defendants or any of them participated in the armed
robbery subject matter of the criminal charge before me. However, the
evidence of the PW2 is that upon receiving a call from one Kehinde who
informed him in a hushed tone that armed robbers were operating at
Mrs Bamigbade's residence, he and his vigilante colleagues hurried there
and that he saw and recognised Shadrach [1** Defendant] standing
outside in the company of four others whilst others were operating
inside the house; that Shadrach who is well known to him was wielding
a gun and he asked his colleagues to exercise caution as they hid
themselves in a nearby bush; that he saw two '‘guys’ come out of'l\/l-rs
Bamigbade's house: one had a Plasma TV on his head whilst the other
was holding a laptop computer; that he did not recognise the others
but he knew Shadrach very well; that they then made some noise and
Shadrach threw away the gun and the person with the Plasma TV
equally dropped it and ran way; that he and his colleagues pursued after
them and took the road leading to Shadrach’s house where they met
Shadrach's brother at home and enquired after Shadrach but was told
he went out with some ‘guys’; that two of his colleagues (i.e. Ola and
Suleiman) hung around Shadrach’s house, whilst two others and himself

C&Q returned to Mrs Bamigbade's house; that on their way, they found the

)

gun in the nearby bush, which they handed over to soldiers from the
’nearby check-point who also accompanied them to Shadrach’s house
%0 but he was still not at home; that the soldiers left whilst he and his
Tl colleagues hung around until about 5.00 a.m. when Shadrach returned
home and they arrested him and called the soldiers who came and to-ov_k
all of them to the Gwagwalada Area Command, where he made a

statement. It is noteworthy that the above positive and direct evidence

adduced by the PW2 was neither shaken nor discredited under cross

examination by G. A. Adole, Esq. of counsel for the Defendants. If

anything, the PW2 insisted under cross examination that he knew



Shadrach very well and recognised him at the scene of the robbery, and
that Shadrach equally knew him as @ vigilante member. The PW2
proceeded to describe the particular black and white polo shirt and
jacket Shadrach was <aid to have worn on that day, and that Shadrach
was wielding a 'cock and shoot' pump action gun and the distance
between where he was hiding in the nearby bush and where the
Shadrach [15t Defendant] stood was approximately eight (8) metres. The
PW2 insisted that it was only Shadrach he recognised but not the
others, and rejected the suggestion that he has identified or pointed at

-Shadrach as one of the robbers merely because he knew him.

G. A. Adole, Esq. of counsel has contended that a critical and thorough
perusal of the statements made on 7/9/13 and 10/9/13 by the PW2
who claimed to have written the statements himself] would reveal some
inherent contradictions when placed side by side with his testimonial
evidence, and that the contradictions should be resolved in favour of
the Defendants. He urged the court to examine the statements made by

* the PW2, specifically that of 7/9/13 which shows that ‘the PW2 lied

~ glaringly in order to nail the 1%t Defendant whom he claimed to have
Q\?.\@\_Emown before the alleged incident merely because he feels the 1%t
| lJ;)Defendant is so popular to his own thinking and dislike’. Unfortunately

however, since the extrajudicial statements said to have been made by

§~>_ e PW2 on 7/9/13 and 10/9/13 [which are allegedly inconsistent with
5% .« testimonial evidence] were not tendered in evidence as exhibits,
gé = here is ﬁothing for this court to examine ‘critical\jy and thoroughly” as
éé firged upon me by learned counsel for the Defendants.

{‘éb ut aside from the testimonial avidence of PW2, it would seem that the

-'*'“‘“l‘i-'ilSt Defendant's extrajudicial statement dated 9/9/13 [Exh. P1] equally

points compellingly to his active involvement or participation in the



armed robbery incident of 6/9/13. For purposes of clarity, T will permi.t

myself to reproduce Exh. P1 /n extenso as follows:

ja

=me: §.SHE HY

3

igh Court of Justice FCT-Abu
CERTIFIED TRUE ropPY

" hail from Kaduna State, Chukun Local Government, Kujama Kataf
by tribe, from family of Bature "M’ in Kataf village. I came to Abuja
in the year 2008, through Engr Victor Dogsun ‘M’ who specialise on
(sic) building and he leave (sic) behind Hajj camp in Gwagwalada -
FCT Abuj-a, presentelly (sic) is in Kaduna State at Barnarwa but I
done know were is leaving (sic). I start (sic) to steal 2010 on my
own. We are six gang in numbers, namely me Shadrach Clement, Isa
‘M’ who leave in Kasuwa Dare in G/Lada, and one Yoruba man who
was once a vigilantee in the area we use to rob, he is our gang
leader. but T don't know his name. He knows the others three gang
and the names, we have rob (sic) three houses behind Hajj Camp in
G/Lada, any time we go operation I will carry gun and Yoruba man
will carry one. The last operation we did on 5/9/2013 at Hajj Camp,
we escaped what (sic) the vigilante men see me with gun and in the
morning they went and arrested me. We are armed robbers, the
following properties we have dispose them to one Lola ‘M’ or Gurgu
'M' at Kasuwa Dare in G/lLada as follows:- Three plasma television,
each one is #420,000, pressing iron at N2000, two stabilizer %3000,

Nokia handset, techno handset #4000, two iron 4500, two pumping
machine 820,500, one mattress MNA000. Those property we rob them
at Mama Yanbiyu, Roger ‘M’ and Sam ‘M' houses. The yellow T-shirt
recovered in robbery incident belong to me, the sliper belong to
Haruna ‘M'. Okechukwu and Haruna they are not armed robbers;
they are my friend.

Also the smgie barrel that was recovered in the bush by v1g||antee I
was the one that throw it in the bush while Yoruba man carried his
own and run, the two single barrel was brought by Yoruba man ‘M’
for operation, also the last operation that I was been arrested T carry
one laptop and sold to Lola or Gurgu at §420,000. T know Lola

house.”
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Exh. P1 is obviously a confessional statement, which is a handy tool in
the arsenal of the prosecution to prove the offence charged. By s. 29(1)
of the Evidence Act, 2011, a confession voluntarily made is a relevant
fact against the person confessing. See IKEMSON v STATE [1989] 3
NWLR (PT 110) 455 at 476 and IHUEBEKA v STATE [2000] 13 WRN
150 at 176. A free and voluntary confession of guilt made by an
accused person, if direct and positive, is sufficient to warrant his
conviction without any corroborative evidence insofar as the court is
satisfied as to the truth of the confession. See YESUFU v STATE (1976)
6 SC 167 at 163, IDOWU v STATE (2000) 7 SC (PT 11) 50 at 62 and
NSOFOR v STATE [2004] 18 NWLR (PT 905) 292.

As stated hereinbefore, the 15t Defendant had in the course of trial
objected to the admissibility of Exh. P1 and a trial-within-trial was
conducted to determine its voluntariness vel non. However, the 1%
Defendant's objection was overruled when he made a volte-face and
denied making any statement at all, thereby raising the issue of non est
Qéifactum which does not affect the admissibility .of the statement. See
EAIGUOREGHIAN v THE STATE [2004] 3 NWLR (PT. 860) 367 at 402
—~’ and MADOJEMU v THE STATE [2001] 25 WRN 1 at 12 - 13, 23 and

§>- .- 5 Tt is instructive that the 1%t Defendant has reiterated the retraction
:‘E?E "n Exh. P1 in his testimonial evidence before me. His insistence that he
g;j ;' Hid not make any statement at all amounts to retracting or resiling from
;é‘ lthe statement which ;the prosecution witnesses [notably PW4 and PWS5]
%? ] _‘maintaln he volunteered without threat, intimidation or inducement of
%U _gany kind. The law is settled beyond peradventure that the retraction of

i or resiling from a confessional statement or the denial by an accused
person that he did not make the statement does not jpso facto render
the statement inadmissible in evidence. See ALARAPE v STATE [2001]
14 WRN 1 at 20, KAREEM v FRN [2001] 49 WRN 97 at 111, OBISI v
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CHIEF OF NAVAL STAFF [2002] 19 WRN 26 at 38 - 39 and
EGBOGHONOME v THE STATE [1993] 7 NWLR (PT 306) 383 at 341.

The mere fact that a confessional statement is retracted by an accused

person does not oreclude the court from acting on the basis of the
retracted statement. See IKEMSON v THE STATE supra at 455 at 468-
469: NWACHUKWU v THE STATE (2007) 12 SCM 447 at 455 and
SHANDE v STATE (2005) 22 NSCQR (PT. 2) 756. The court can convict
on the basis of a retracted confessional statement. See MANU
GALADIMA v THE STATE (2013) 14 MRSCJ at 81 & 82. 1t is for the
trial court to take the retraction into consideration in determining the
forensic utility of, or weight to be attached to, the confessional
statement. The test to be applied in this regard as laid down in the case
of R v SYKES (1913) 8 Cr. App. R. 233 which was approved by the
West African Court of Appeal in KANU v THE KING (1952/55) 14
WACA 30 ahd followed in a long line of cases, is that a trial judge
confronted with a retracted confessional statement should ask himself

the following pertinent queries:

:&Q (i) Is there anything outside the confession to show that it

e )
) is true?
' —= (i) Is it corroborated?

s,

?,__3'3 (i) Are the relevant statements made in it of facts, true as
E”., | far as they can be tested?

_E :”: (iv) Was the prisoner one who had the opportunity of
"_J::f 3 _ committing the crime?

tz: % (v) Is his confession possible? and

_?____«E_ (vi) Is it consistent with other facts which have been

ascertained and proved?
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If the confessional statement passes the above tests satisfactorily, a

conviction founded on it would invariably be upheld unless other
grounds of objection exist. But if the confessional statement fails these
tests, no conviction can properly be founded on it. See SHAZALI v
STATE supra, IKPO v STATE (2016) LPELR-40114 (SC), ACHABUA v
STATE (1976) NSCC 74 and GABRIEL v STATE [2010] 6 NWLR (PT.
1190) 280 at 290H.

In the case at hand, notwithstanding the 1* Defendant's retraction of
Exh. P1 and his insistence that 'he did not tell the police anything’, it is
difficult in the extreme to accept that he did not make Exh. P1. There
are several questions tugging vigorously at the back of my mind. For
instance, how did the police come to have comprehensive details of the
15t Defendant's bio-data and background information such as his family
name, village, tribe, local government of origin, when and through
whom he came to Abuja, where he lives, etc. if he did not tell them
anything? How could the police have known about Engr. Victor Dogson
‘and Isa as his brother and friend respectively if the 1t Defendant did
not make any statement to the Police as he Would like this court to
believe when neither Engr. Dogson nor Isa was arrested or invited by
the police at all material times? These are questions begging for
answers from the 1t Defendant. At any event, it would éeem that the 1%
Defendant conceded under cross examination by P. A. Ogele, Esqg. of
counsel for the Prosecution that he made the confessional statement in
BB L I find the followmg.’exchange under cross examination on
26/10/16 quite instructive:

“Q: Do you know Engr. Victor Dogson?

A Yes, 1 do. High n Court of Justice FCT- Abuja
Q: Do you also know one Isa?

cz PY
: . WI}‘?EE lelf»Fw (
A: Yes. ‘ ¥ “""j atery .,& / (
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Q: Will you be surprised that Victor Dogson and Isa are mentioned
in your statement?

A: T will nat be surprised.

Q: You are not surprised hecause Victor is your brother and Isa is

your friend, and you mentioned them in your statement?

A Yes.

The foregoing shows clearly that the 1%t Defendant's disavowal of Exh.
P1 on the ground that ‘he did not tell the police anything' is hollow and
3 mere defiant gesture in the face of an inevitable outcome. His’
testimony under Cross examination [as stated above] constitutes
extraneous materifal that points to the truth of the confessional
statement, even as the evidence of PW2 [who positively identified the 1°
Defendant as the person he saw wielding a gun and standing outside
Mrs Bamigbade's residence whilst others were operating inside]
constitutes sufficient corroboration of the confessional statement in Exh.

© p1. Also, the confessional statement is not inconsistent with the fact that
<" there was a robbery incident at Mrs Bamigbade‘s residence situate

= behind Hajj Camp, Gwagwalada on 6/9/13 as demonstrated by the

S ——

J‘itestlmomal evidence of PW1, PW2 and PW3 [Sgt Musa Emmanuel who
S'ﬂrst received the 1%t Defendant, the pump action gun [Exh. P4] and other
2|

e %ecovered items at DCB, Gwagwalada on 6/9/13 before the case was

S TEiEDR TRUE COPY

l qu.!

==

;. subsequently transferred to SARS]. Again, there is nothing to suggest

igh Court of Justice FCT-Abuja

hat the 1% Defendant did not have ‘the opportunity to commit the
i

crime as he did not raise any alibi al'leging that he was not in Abuja.
when the robbery took place. I am therefore satisfied that the 1%
Defendant’s confession is quite possible and that he had the

opportunity to commit the offence with which he is charged. T will
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accordingly accord full weight and credence to the confessional

statement in Exh. P1 as a relevant fact in relation to the 1% Defendant.

But as it relates to the 2™ and 3rd Defendants, it does not seem to me
that the Prosecution adduced any direct or positive evidence pointing to
their involvement or participation in the robbery incident of 6/9/13.
Whilst the PW1 did not recognise any of the robbers, the PW2 equally
recognised only the 15t Defendant but not the others. The extrajudicial
statements of the 2 and 3™ Defendants dated 13/9/13 [i.e. Exhs. P2
and P3] are also not confessional in nature. It was the 1% Defendant who
ctated in his extrajudicial statement dated 9/9/13 [Exh. P1] that a certain
Yoruba man who was once a vigilante member in the area was the
leader of his armed robbery gang; and that he sold the stolen laptop to
the 3@ Defendant [also known as Lola Gurgu] for %20,000. The rather
frenzied attempt by the learned prosecuting counsel to extract positive
dmissions from the 2™ and 3™ Defendants during cross examination

CE}‘Owas unsuccessful. The 2 Defendant stood his ground that even though

“‘\he hails from Kwara State and is a person of Yoruba origin, he is not an

=-PPC member but a labourer and that Shadrach [1* Defendant] must be

3‘?{ ‘teferring to a different Yoruba man, but not him. The 3 Defendant
%E’; - bqually stood his ground that although Lola and Gurgu are his
%Eg-' Licknames and had met Shadrach [1st Defendant] previously when he
%Eg Lought to convert to Islam, they have not seen each other for more than
é%c three (3) years and there has been no exchange of items or any other
T 'S ansaction whatsoever between them since they met. Even the 1%

Defendant denied having met the 2nd Defendant previously or selling

any stolen items to the 31d Defendant in his testimonial evidence.

It would seem therefore that aside from the 1t Defendant's extrajudicial
statement, there is no other evidence pointing to the involvement of the
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ond and 3 Defendants in the robbery incident of 6/9/13; and as the

police did not recover any stolen items from them, there is also no
circumstantial evidence linking them one way or another to the robbery.
It is settled that a confessional statement of an accused person is potent
only against him [See s. 29(1) of the Evidence Act, 2011) and cannot
be used as evidence against his co-accused without any corroboration.
See STATE v ONYEUKWU [2004] 14 NWLR (PT. 893) 340. This being
so, to the extent that the 15t Defendant's extrajudicial statement in
Exhibit P1 seeks to incriminate the 2™ and 3™ Defendants without any
corroborative evidence, it goes to no issue and cannot be relied upon;
and I cannot but find and hold that the Prosecution has failed to
establish the offence of armed robbery against the 2™ and 3™
Defendants.

It is forcefully contended on behalf of the Prosecution that although,
there is no express count of receiving stolen property against the 3«
Defendant, this court can go ahead to convict him for receiving stolen
property, and that the 2nd Defendant can equally be convicted for
criminal conspiracy and armed robbery based on the facts disclosed in

%he evidence of the Prosecution witnesses, citing ss. 223 and 230 of the

Administration of Criminal Justice Act (ACJA) 2015,

o -
El :
E% ow, Part 23 of the ACJA 2015 regulates ‘conviction when charged with
O T4
‘;‘% dne of several offences or of another offence. Sections 223 and 230,
_‘-__%EQ? SRlpon which the Prosecution has relied in urging the court to convict the
“‘5u—"ﬂEj -‘ .ﬂv vrd . s ‘ -
£ 330 and 3 Defendants for offences not specifically charged, provide as
‘2% dipllows:
g

993 Where a defendant is charged with one offence and it appears
in evidence that he committed a similar offence with which he

might have been charged under the provisions of this Act, he
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may be convicted of the offence which he is shown to have
committed although he was not charged with it

1930. Where . in the charge for burglary, housebreaking or related

offence, the facts proved in evidence justify a conviction for
some other offences and not the offence with which the
defendant is charged, he may be convicted of the other
offence and be punished as if he had been convicted on a

charge or an information charging him with the offence

The above provisions are not necessarily an innovation in Nigerian
criminal jurispruden'ce Our courts have always been empowered to
convict in appropriate cases for an offence(s) other than that with which
a criminal defendant is specifically charged Where the facts proved in

evidence support a conviction for such other offence(s). In BABALOLA v
STATE [1989] NWLR (PT.115) 26, the Supreme Court [per Nnaemeka

Agu, J5C] held that “where in the trial for offences mentioned in Chapter
37 of the Criminal Code, the facts proved in evidence support &

conviction for an offence other than that with which the accused /s

charged, he may be found guilty of that other offence and punished

’%@ccordm gly”

the case at hand, it doe

CT-Abuja
~OPY

< not seem to me that the evidence adduced
efore me vindicates the contention that the 27 and 3 Defendants can

convicted for the offences of receiving stolen property and
nspiracy to commit armed robbe

Justice P
DRI

auet-of

RT

ry. Aside from Exh. P1 wherein the 1
efendant stated that he sold a stolen laptop to the 3 Defendant

/% wal Mohammed] for #20,000 and the testimony of PW5 [Celestine

y1gba] that the 15t Defendant led them to the residence of the 3™
Defendant and pointed at the

~
A=
o
=
u

High |

3rd Defendant as the person to whom he
sold the laptop, there is no other independent piece of evidence

showmg that the 3“j Defendant recelved arv laptop from the lSt
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Defendant as alleged or at all. More crucially, no laptop was recovered

when the 1%t Defendant led the police to the 3 Defendant’s residence.
There is therefore no evidential basis for urging me to convict the 3¢

Defendant for receiving stolen property.

Also, none of the Prosecution witnesses positively identified the ond. .
Defendant as one of the robbers who robbed Mrs Bamigbade [PW1] of
money and other valuables on 6/9/13, and the 2" Defendant did not
make any confessional statement. Crucially, in his testimonial evidence
which was rot shakeh or discredited under cross examination, the 2
Defendant denied being present at Mrs. Yemisi Bamigbade’s house, or
participating in any robbery, or knowing Victor Olabisi [PW2], or ever
being an OPC man or member of Viglante Group; and insisted that even
though he hails from Kwara State and is Yoruba by tribe, Shadrach [1*
Defendant] must be referring to a different Yoruba man other than
himself. Quite clearly therefore, the evidence adduced by the
Prosecution does not disclose any agreement or meeting of minds
1 ‘between the 2" Defendant and any other person(s) in furtherance of an
A unlawful enterprise or purpose, and a conviction for conspiracy to

—

ommit armed robbery cannot be sustained on the evidence adduced

efore me.

~NPY

ice ECT-AbUja
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WFIED TRYT
tame = f

CERT

the ultimate analysis, it seems to me that on the basis of the

stimonial evidence of the PW?2 [which is direct and positive] and Exh.

ourt of Ju

[being the 1st . Defendant's extrajudicial statement which is

~
L)

tBhfessional in nature], the Prosecution has established the guilt of the

it}

Hig

1%t Defendant [Shadrach Clement Salisu] beyond reasonable doubt and [
hereby find him guilty of the offence of armed robbery as charged. I
equally find and hold that the Prosecution did not succeed in

demonstrating the guilt of the 2™ Defendant [Wisdom Sunday] and the
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34 Defendant [Auwal Mohammed], and the duo are accordingly
discharged and acquitted.

(/ |‘-’ETER O. AFFEN

Honourable Judge

ALLOCUTUS:

G Ede«dole My Lord we hereby enter a p\ea of allocutus on behalf of

the 1% Defendant, Shadrach Clement Salisu, who has just

_———o
s, been convicted, considering his position in life and age. All
g?‘-: & through his trial, I had to pick up the case and defend him
Em : pro bono because none of his relatives came 1o his rescue or
éé 4id. There is no record of any previous conviction and being
?—'?;M a first-time offender, we urge the court to tamper justice
o with mercy. May it please my Lord.

COURT: [ have listened carefully and attentively to the plea of

allocutus passionately delivered by G. E. Adole, Esg. of
counsel on behalf of the 1°¥ Defendant, Shadrach Clement
“Salisu who has _jUSt heen found guilty and convicted of the
offence of armed robbery. By s. 1(2)(@) of the Robbery &
Firearms (Special Provisions) Act (hereinafter "the Act’),
conviction for armed robbery attracts the ultimate penalty,

Whi;h is death. The Act leaves no room whatsoever for
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Counsel:

discretion on the part of the judex. As it were, my hands are
effectively tied by the mandatory provisions of s.I(2)(@) of
the Act under which the 1%t Defendant is charged and
eventually convicted, and all this court is obligated to do in
the circumstance is merely to pronounce the prescribed

punishment. Nothing more, nothing less, nothing elsel!

This being so, the sentence of this court is that: You,
Shadrach Clement Salisu be hanged by the neck until you

be dead, and may God have mercy on your soul.

@/y@ﬁfﬂm@f

PéTER O. AFFEN

Honourable Judge

P. A. Ogele, Esq. for the Prosecution.

G. E. Adole, Esq. for the Defendants.
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